Washington Young Lawyers Committee

Washington Young Lawyers Committee Meeting | Hybrid at the Marcus Whitman Hotel & Zoom
Friday, July 18, 2025, | 9:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
Via Zoom | Meeting ID: 899 4611 1517| Passcode 608920| Call In 888-788-0099

AGENDA:

1) Welcome & Introductions; Approval of June Meeting Minutes — Mason
2) WSBA Updates —Chelle, Jordan
a) BOG Meeting Updates
b) WSBA Updates
3) Bylaw Amendment Update — Mason
4) PSLA Nomination Review and Decisions — Alex
5) Team Updates and Regional Reports — All
a) Financial Focus CLE — Chawisa
b) Social Media — Ariel
c) Legal Lunchbox CLE - Hanna
d) Mentorship Project Team — Janta
6) July After Bar Exam Social — Chelle
7) New ideas for Next Meeting — All
8) Adjournment — Mason


https://www.hotelsone.com/walla-walla-hotels-us/the-marcus-whitman-hotel-and-conference-center.html?dsti=692817&dstt=8&nid=1&as=g&aid=605768374070&cmpid=13983518&agid=2289848558&gid=CjwKCAjw1dLDBhBoEiwAQNRiQVV-uPIuoaUwl9rB8k6o7aB5IKSbZ79wqS-s59WyECW0cZiwPtT0EhoC8L8QAvD_BwE&gwbrd=CkoKCAjwss3DBhBFEjoAkIzbROEdOzj348LgYOEPLMxymd2GR-x1FY_WcOz4iVY9KVUPj1dU0YyV6-WdYuwMEe0UAD-C9Y-QGgK3XA&ggbrd=0AAAAAD4o1PdRb-MjBRtG5FBE5IXCKgb9n&gad_source=1&gad_campaignid=13983518&gbraid=0AAAAAD4o1PdRb-MjBRtG5FBE5IXCKgb9n&gclid=CjwKCAjw1dLDBhBoEiwAQNRiQVV-uPIuoaUwl9rB8k6o7aB5IKSbZ79wqS-s59WyECW0cZiwPtT0EhoC8L8QAvD_BwE
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwsba.zoom.us%2Fj%2F89946111517%3Fpwd%3D7EKHg6XGsZ864bEQjeTR8mFtvQu7bC.1&data=05%7C02%7CMichelleg%40wsba.org%7C9b6ef71066b04b13949308dd995813f0%7C70ff1cc281ea46819fc9079ce419e302%7C0%7C0%7C638835325739467949%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SoRM4OQle5CsHqrdWBF0AbQ5GlnotCa68TLXwZX0Rbo%3D&reserved=0

WASHINGTON STATE

BAR ASSOCIATION

Washington Young Lawyers Committee

Washington Young Lawyers Committee Meeting | Virtual via Zoom
Monday, June 2, 2025, | 12:06 p.m.-1:02 p.m.
Meeting Minutes

WYLC Members Present In-Person or Phone: Mason Ji, Steven Brown (arrived 12:23 p.m.), Hanna
Harrison, Chawisa Laicharoenwat, Matthew Rommelmann, Stephan Yhann, Alexander Reaganson, Janta
Steele, Michelle Hesse; Ariel Cook

WYLC Members Absent: Adin Johnson (excused), Sydney Sherman (unexcused), Thomas Garvey
(unexcused), Aaron Haynes (unexcused), Bethany Nolan (unexcused), Mackenzie Lloyd (excused),
Makenzie Spinks (unexcused), Michelle Mendoza (excused)

Board of Governors Liaisons: Jordan Couch (departed 12:10 p.m.)

WSBA Staff: Chelle Gegax — WSBA Member Services and Engagement Specialist, Vanessa Sweeney —
WSBA Member Services and Engagement Program Coordinator, Julianne Unite - WSBA Member Services
and Engagement Manager

Welcome & Introductions; Approval of May Meeting Minutes — Mason

WYLC Chair, Mason Ji, opened the meeting at 12:06 p.m. and welcomed everyone in attendance.
On motion by WYLC Member Hanna Harrison, seconded by WYLC Member Alexander Reaganson,
the WYLC approved the March WYLC Meeting minutes (9-0-0).

WSBA Updates — Chelle, Jordan
BOG Meeting Updates — Jordan

WYLC Member/BOG Liaison Jordan Couch shared recent updates from the Board of Governors
(BOG). At the May meeting, the BOG passed on writing an amicus brief regarding a lawsuit filed by
public defenders against the superior court. Ultimately, after receiving more information, the BOG
passed on it and decided not to file amicus brief. Also atthe May meeting, the WSBA Equity and
Justice plan was approved, which will serve as a guiding document for the Bar for the next few
years. Jordan suggested attending the July BOG meeting in Walla Walla to the Committee, if folks
are able, as itis a good opportunity to meet people. Jordan concluded with offering Committee
member to reach out to Jordan with questions, or comments to be shared with the BOG.



Bylaws Amendment Update — Mason

Mason shared there are two definition proposals for review and approval, along with a proposal to
rename the “Washington Young Lawyers Committee” to the “Washington New Members
Committee.” The first version includes LLTs and LPOs, and the second version includes an
additional year for eligibility to support situations that may need it.

WYLC Member Janta Steele commented that it appears strict in terms of members of the
committee and membership of WSBA on whether or not to offer more time for practitioners after
transferring in from other jurisdictions. Janta noted transferring in from British Columbia, and Alex
from tribal court, and expressed the need for inclusivity, noting that not all transfers have the same
experience coming from other jurisdictions. In terms of simplicity, making it clean and simple
across the board. Giving everyone 10 years was slightly less popular, but it’s cleaner in order to
reduce confusion. Janta clarified that recognizing people transferring in, and outlining 10 years
across the board, are the two pieces presented to the Committee for support.

Mason asked for input from the Committee on proceeding with the proposal. The deadline for
materials submission is June 12 to be included in the July BOG meeting agenda. WYLC Member
Stephan Yhann requested clarification between the two definitions. Mason explained that the key
difference is ‘after the year in which such member first...” in definition number two. Which would
allow an additional year for purposes of serving on different committees and be considered a new
member, the term ends after December of their fifth year which provides a buffer.

The Committee reviewed the second definition, which mirrors existing WSBA bylaws language. It
was noted that the BOG will be more familiar with the verbiage, however the language in the first
definition is cleaner. WYLC Member Matthew Rommelmann remarked that the first definition is
cleaner upon first reading it. WSBA Member Services and Engagement Manager Julianne Unite
commented that if definition number two is highlighted, the intent behind the use of “after the year
is clearly explained in the cover memo. Julianne added that if research was done on what is
outlined in other jurisdictions, that it is addressed in the cover memo. Julianne referenced Article
Xll, Section A “PURPOSE” on page 53 of the WSBA Bylaws and explained that this was applicable to
the definition of what was formerly the Washington Young Lawyer Division and was carried over to
the Committee after the division was dissolved. Julianne stated that it can remain and be updated
to reference “new members.” Mason commented that although removing the purpose provision
hasn’t been discussed, the Committee can vote and amendments can be made to change “young
lawyer” to “new members.” Janta shared the existing text for “PURPOSE” in the chat. Julianne
explained that this section was for what they’re supposed to be doing as opposed to what they get
as a new member, which is spread out in the bylaws, not in this provision. Julianne noted that it is
unclear why this hasn’t been modified before. Julianne called out Part A is the role of the WYLC,
while Part B is who qualifies, but not member benefits. Julianne recommended stating there will be
a new member committee and the purpose of the committee should follow the definition of new
members, and also commented the option to remove the “PURPOSE” section entirely, as it doesn’t
make sense without addressing it somewhere.

»



Janta shared extra draft text in the chat — “there will be a new members committee within the Bar for
the purposes of...” the continuing text can remain the same as what currently exists.

On motion by Janta, seconded by Alex, the Committee voted to approve that the WYLC adopts the
purpose provision change that begins with “There will be a New Members Committee within the Bar
for the purposes of...” and continues with the remaining unchanged text (6-2-1). This will be
included as part of the proposal to the BOG.

Mason asks if there is a motion to present both to BOG: a revision to the name AND definition,
beginning with the name change. On motion by Alex, seconded by WYLC Member Ariel Cook, the
Committee voted to approve to change the name from “Washington Young Lawyers Committee” to
“Washington New Member Committee” (7-0-1).

Mason stated the next steps is to determine which definition to present to the BOG, and asked
Chelle and Julianne whether the Committee can include a choice for the BOG - in particular, can
the BOG also consider the additional year portion of the second definition. If the BOG feels more
comfortable with one definition over the other, allowing a choice as opposed to an ultimatum.
Julianne responded that the Committee could propose both, and provide a clear explanation as to
why there are two options and the difference between them. Mason suggested leading with the first
definition, but if they prefer the second definition, the option is open - this will be highlighted in the
cover memo. Janta asked whether a member can continue their committee membership if
someone is qualified part way through their last year. Julianne explained that if someone qualifies
at the start of the term, that is good for the remainder of the term. Mason commented that this
makes it clear to go with the shorter, cleaner definition.

On motion by Alex, seconded by WYLC Member Michelle Hesse, the Committee voted to present
both options to the BOG with stated preference of option number one (10-0-0).

Mason confirmed the bylaw subcommittee will prepare the materials for submission. Julianne
mentioned that today is ideal but should get in by the end of the week. Alex will have the cover
letter by end of lunch tomorrow.

Project Team Updates
Public Service Leadership Awards - Alex

Alex shared that the Public Service Leadership Awards received 15 nominations. There were eight
individual nominations, and one person received seven nominations. Alex stated the WYLC
provides four awards and asked the Committee to consider expanding to five awards this year.
Mason remarked there doesn’t seem to be a reason why not to expand to five, as there is budget
available. Julianne noted that it was publicly communicated publicly that up to four recipients will
be awarded. Alex will likely write the magazine article again this year. There were extraordinary
nominations was for one person. On motion by Alex, seconded by Janta, the Committee voted to
award five recipients this award cycle (10-0-0).

The WYLC proceeded with reviewing nominations. Alex began with Nominee number 6, who
received an extraordinary number of nominations. Alex asked for a yes/no vote for nominee nhumber



6 to be awarded a PSLA award this year, received 10 votes, and will be the first awardee. The
Committee continued to review each nomination, deciding to proceed with voting among nominee
numbers 1, 2, 4,5, 11, and 14.

Alex clarified, out of the six final nominees (Numbers 1, 2, 4, 5, 11, 14), Committee members are to
select their top four. Nominee 6 is the recipient of the fifth award. Hanna departed the meeting at
1:00 p.m. and quorum requirements were no longer met. Chelle will verify if it is possible for the
WYLC to vote for remaining award recipients via a poll circulated via email.

Adjournment — Mason

Mason adjourned the meeting at 1:02 p.m.

Current Bylaws
XIl. YOUNG LAWYERS
A. PURPOSE

There will be a member segment within the Bar identified as “Young Lawyers” for the purposes of
encouraging the interest and participation of (i) new and young lawyers and law students in the
activities of the Bar; and (ii) developing and conducting programs of interest and value to new and



young lawyers consistent with the focus areas of public service and pro bono programs, transition
to practice, and member outreach and leadership; and (iii) upholding and supporting the Guiding
Principles of the Bar.

There will be a New Members Committee within the Bar for the purposes of encouraging the
interest and participation of (i) new and young lawyers and law students in the activities of the Bar;
and (ii) developing and conducting programs of interest and value to new and young lawyers
consistent with the focus areas of public service and pro bono programs, transition to practice, and

member outreach and leadership; and (iii) upholding and supporting the Guiding Principles of the
Bar.




5/22/25, 9:25 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025

View results

Respondent

1 Anonymous 05:30

Time to complete

Eligibility Requirements

Award recipients must meet the “"young lawyer” definition in the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) Bylaws. Under the Bylaws, an active
member is considered a young lawyer if at least one of two criteria is met: 1) the member has been admitted to practice for fewer than five years (in
any state), or 2) the member is under 36 years of age.

Nomination Process

Candidates for the award must be nominated by another individual. To complete a nomination, complete the application below and email any sup-
plemental materials, e.g. nominee’s resume, articles, etc., that the nominee would like the WYLC to consider to newmembers@wsba.org. Please
note the nomination deadline is May 29.

Selection Process

During the selection process, the WYLC will consider the nominee's leadership in their community and involvement in public service activities as de-
scribed in RPC 6.1. Long-term service or an extraordinary contribution to the community will be considered, including:

a) leadership and service in the local community or within a bar association;

b)  WSBA, ABA, or local bar association activities;

¢) Volunteering with pro bono or public service programs; or

d)  Writing a blog post for NWSidebar and/or writing an article for WSBA magazine.

The WYLC will select the award recipients at the June 2, 2025 WYLC meeting. All application materials will be included in the WYLC meeting materi-
als packet and posted online. Confidential information will be redacted from publication. Recipients may only receive the award once during the

WSBA fiscal year (October 1 —September 30). A congratulatory email will be sent directly from WSBA to the award recipient notifying them of their
selection. For more information, contact newmembers@wsba.org.

1. Nominee Name: *

I
2. Firm/Employer: *

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...  1/2



5/22/25, 9:25 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025
3. Mailing Address: * a

4. Phone Number: *

5. E-Mail Address: *

6. WSBA Number: *

7. Year Admitted to Practice in Washington:

8. Nominator's Name: *

9. Nominator's Email: *

10. Relationship to Nominee: *
Co-worker

11. Describe the nominee's leadership in his or her local community: *

I : - incredibly valued member of our legal community, doing incredible work, providing mentorship to other new attorneys, compassion to [liclients,
and on the board for young lawyers.

12. How has the nominee promoted and/or contributed tot he legal profession and community? *

-carries -with dignity and respect that .shows for all clients while representing zealously.

13. Describe a situation in which the nominee has "gone above and beyond"? *

loends over backwards forlllclients, spends, personal hours, and goes out of .Way to improve .Iient's situation to help them.

14. Additional information:

Absolute gem of a human being that anyone would be lucky to have represent them.

Additional Materials:

Please submit additional materials such as cover letter, resume, etc. to newmembers@wsba.org.

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...  2/2



5/22/25, 9:26 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025

View results

Respondent

2 Anonymous 4601

Time to complete

Eligibility Requirements

Award recipients must meet the “"young lawyer” definition in the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) Bylaws. Under the Bylaws, an active
member is considered a young lawyer if at least one of two criteria is met: 1) the member has been admitted to practice for fewer than five years (in
any state), or 2) the member is under 36 years of age.

Nomination Process

Candidates for the award must be nominated by another individual. To complete a nomination, complete the application below and email any sup-
plemental materials, e.g. nominee’s resume, articles, etc., that the nominee would like the WYLC to consider to newmembers@wsba.org. Please
note the nomination deadline is May 29.

Selection Process

During the selection process, the WYLC will consider the nominee's leadership in their community and involvement in public service activities as de-
scribed in RPC 6.1. Long-term service or an extraordinary contribution to the community will be considered, including:

a) leadership and service in the local community or within a bar association;

b)  WSBA, ABA, or local bar association activities;

¢)  Volunteering with pro bono or public service programs; or

d)  Writing a blog post for NWSidebar and/or writing an article for WSBA magazine.

The WYLC will select the award recipients at the June 2, 2025 WYLC meeting. All application materials will be included in the WYLC meeting materi-
als packet and posted online. Confidential information will be redacted from publication. Recipients may only receive the award once during the

WSBA fiscal year (October 1 —September 30). A congratulatory email will be sent directly from WSBA to the award recipient notifying them of their
selection. For more information, contact newmembers@wsba.org.

1. Nominee Name: *

2. Firm/Employer: *

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...  1/3



5/22/25, 9:26 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025

3.

10.

11.

12.

13.

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqgBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...

Mailing Address: *

. Phone Number: *

. E-Mail Address: *

. WSBA Number: *

. Year Admitted to Practice in Washington:

. Nominator's Name: *

. Nominator's Email: *

Relationship to Nominee: *

Paralegal

Describe the nominee's leadership in his or her local community: *

-is currently the [ llof the Family Law Section, dedicating [llltime to organizing CLEs and other events to benefit the local legal community. [Jruly
enjoys giving back and seeing people succeed in Iife.-urrently represents multiple clients on a pro bono basis, ensuring that they have counsel to help see
them through some of their hardest times, including DV Protection Order and custody proceedings._ls committed to ensuring -clients, colleagues, and
friends feel heard, and is always encouraging those -represents to believe in themselves and to fight for what's right.

How has the nominee promoted and/or contributed tot he legal profession and community? *

-goes above and beyond to help serve the community by volunteering [llltime to assist on the family law pro se dockets by helping pro se litigants in
preparing orders and strategizing their next steps forward.-also enjoys advocating for the underserved and underrepresented communities in Clark County.
loclieves that everyone deserves to be treated fairly and truly fights to ensure that all of those around -mderstand their rights in the courtroom, and their
value in the world.

Describe a situation in which the nominee has "gone above and beyond"? *

-has represented a lot of men and women throughout -career, but Iledication to helping women who are survivors of domestic violence is truly
admirable. | began working for -just 5 months ago and in that time, I've seen -represent multiple women who were victims of domestic violence on a pro
bono basis. One client in particular was attempting to renew a DVPO against her ex husband who suffered from an onset of psychotic symptoms that led him to be
unsafe for she and their children. This woman was truly terrified of her ex husband, while also being heartbroken that the love of her life was no longer a
recognizable man. This woman was representing herself and -iecided to tune into the Zoom hearing to keep an eye on things. At the hearing, her ex
threatened her on the record while the Court denied her motion to renew based on procedural missteps. -immediately contacted her after the hearing and
immediately began representing her on a pro bono basis to get the DVPO renewed. This consisted of hours of work, and also resulted in -receiving dozens
of threats from the opposing party. This didn't stop --made sure to get the client's order renewed, and made sure her location remained anonymous,
allowing her to feel safe in her own home once again. never once hesitated to help this woman - [llllumped into action when [l saw that the woman
was about to give up. This is the type of thing -Eswith so many of -clients. .Nants to protect people, and working for [lllend getting to be a part
of this team is truly an honor.

2/3



5/22/25, 9:26 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025

14. Additional information:

After 19 years at another firm, | joined Butchard Law in January of this year. | was nervous starting over, but | am so glad | made the move - rive and
determination is something I've rarely seen and is truly inspiring. Watchinglllltand firm in Illconvictions and dedication to the community has motivated me to
take chances, to judge less, to listen more closely, and to always try to lift up those around me. is a bright, young attorney with huge ambitions and
limitless potential. [Jlideserves to be nominated for Public Service and Leadership for all [Jlfhas given to our local legal community and all of those it serves.

Additional Materials:

Please submit additional materials such as cover letter, resume, etc. to newmembers@wsba.org.

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...  3/3



5/22/25, 9:26 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025

View results

Respondent

3 Anonymous 0551

Time to complete

Eligibility Requirements

Award recipients must meet the “"young lawyer” definition in the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) Bylaws. Under the Bylaws, an active
member is considered a young lawyer if at least one of two criteria is met: 1) the member has been admitted to practice for fewer than five years (in
any state), or 2) the member is under 36 years of age.

Nomination Process

Candidates for the award must be nominated by another individual. To complete a nomination, complete the application below and email any sup-
plemental materials, e.g. nominee’s resume, articles, etc., that the nominee would like the WYLC to consider to newmembers@wsba.org. Please
note the nomination deadline is May 29.

Selection Process

During the selection process, the WYLC will consider the nominee's leadership in their community and involvement in public service activities as de-
scribed in RPC 6.1. Long-term service or an extraordinary contribution to the community will be considered, including:

a) leadership and service in the local community or within a bar association;

b)  WSBA, ABA, or local bar association activities;

¢) Volunteering with pro bono or public service programs; or

d)  Writing a blog post for NWSidebar and/or writing an article for WSBA magazine.

The WYLC will select the award recipients at the June 2, 2025 WYLC meeting. All application materials will be included in the WYLC meeting materi-
als packet and posted online. Confidential information will be redacted from publication. Recipients may only receive the award once during the

WSBA fiscal year (October 1 —September 30). A congratulatory email will be sent directly from WSBA to the award recipient notifying them of their
selection. For more information, contact newmembers@wsba.org.

1. Nominee Name: *

2. Firm/Employer: *

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...  1/2



5/22/25, 9:26 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025
3. Mailing Address: * a

4. Phone Number: *

5. E-Mail Address: *

6. WSBA Number: *

7. Year Admitted to Practice in Washington:

8. Nominator's Name: *

9. Nominator's Email: *

10. Relationship to Nominee: *

Friend

11. Describe the nominee's leadership in his or her local community: *

‘oes above and beyond each and every day of .Iife to serve her community through ./vork with SnoCo Public Defenders.

12. How has the nominee promoted and/or contributed tot he legal profession and community? *

-Ieads by example.

13. Describe a situation in which the nominee has "gone above and beyond"? *

-handled a trial with a low chance at success and helped .client reach a not guilty.

14. Additional information:

Additional Materials:

Please submit additional materials such as cover letter, resume, etc. to newmembers@wsba.org.

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...  2/2































































Contact

www.linkedin.com/in/ | Attorney at Law

(LinkedIn)

Legal Assistance _ ) L
Attorney with a demonstrated history of working in diverse and

Legal Administration . ) . i
challenging environments. Skilled in Personnel Management, Human

Legal Service
Resources, Leadership, Project Planning, and Project Management.

Admitted to Washington State Bar Association Oct 2022. Bachelor
LexisNexis Certification Part 1: of Arts (Psychology) - The Ohio State University Class of 2015. Juris
Proficiency Certification Doctor - Seattle University School of Law Class of 2022.

Certifications

Experience

Tacomaprobono Community Lawyers

Staff Attorney
February 2025 - Present (4 months)

Nexus Legal Counsel

Associate Attorney
April 2024 - Present (1 year 2 months)

Skate Like a Girl

Board Member
March 2021 - October 2024 (3 years 8 months)

Tacomaprobono Community Lawyers

Staff Attorney
September 2022 - March 2024 (1 year 7 months)

Seattle University School of Law

Law Student
August 2019 - May 2022 (2 years 10 months)

Legal Aid at Work

Legal Extern
August 2021 - December 2021 (5 months)

Page 1 of 2



https://www.linkedin.com/in/lauren-romero?jobid=1234&lipi=urn%3Ali%3Apage%3Ad_jobs_easyapply_pdfgenresume%3BT0C8oSTCQy2KiEdst4bJ1Q%3D%3D&licu=urn%3Ali%3Acontrol%3Ad_jobs_easyapply_pdfgenresume-v02_profile

Legal Aid Foundation of Los Angeles

Law Clerk
May 2021 - July 2021 (3 months)

US Army
3 years 8 months

Assistant Operations Officer
March 2017 - August 2019 (2 years 6 months)

Planning and managing programs and projects for a field artillery battalion

Company Fire Support Officer
October 2016 - March 2017 (6 months)

Coordinated indirect fire assets for an infantry company

Adjutant
May 2016 - October 2016 (6 months)

Managed several battalion programs/projects and all personnel actions

Fire Direction Officer
January 2016 - May 2016 (5 months)

Calculating firing data for 6 howitzers in support of an infantry battalion

Education

Seattle University School of Law
Doctor of Law - JD, Law - (2019 - 2022)

The Ohio State University
Bachelor of Arts - BA, Psychology - (2011 - 2015)

Page 2 of 2






























Address: I | ©: | C:

EDUCATION
University of Idaho College of Law Moscow, ID
Juris Doctorate, Cum laude Aug. 2020-May 2023
Honors: Deans List (Fall ‘20, Spring '21, Fall '21, Fall '22, Spring ‘23), Hispanic Scholarship Fund Scholar
(HSF) recipient (2022-23), Latino/a Bar Association of Washington (LBAW) scholarship recipient Spring

2023.
Activities: Chief Moscow Editor of the Idaho Law Review, President of the Latino/a Law Caucus
(LLC).
Master of Public Administration May 2021-May 2023
Honors: Deans List (Fall’21, Spring '22, Fall '22, Spring ‘23)
Western Washington University Bellingham, WA
Bachelor of Arts Sep. 2014-June2018

Honors: HSF recipient (2017-18)
Activities: WWU Migrant Youth Leadership Conference (March 2015, March 2016).

PUBLIC SERVICE

Hispanic National Bar Association (2020- Present)
Latino/a Bar Association of Washington (2020- Present)

o0 Judicial Review Committee (2024- Present)
Univ. of Idaho Legal Aid Clinic

0 Volunteer Interpreter (2020 -23)
Latino/a Law Caucus

0 President (2022 - 23)

0 Othello Project- Coordinating NWJP and Law Students to assist farm workers in Othello, WA
Volunteer Representation of asylum seekers, representing them in arguments before the 9t Circuit Court of
Appeals (2023)
LAW Advocates, providing civil legal assistance to the indigent (2024- present)

0 Elected Chair (2025- present)

0 Board Member (2024- present)

o0 Pro-bono attorney for individual clients and at LAW Advocates clinics for the (2023- present)
Washington Women'’s Lawyers (2023- Present)
Western Washington University Immigration Aid Clinics (2024- present)

EMPLOYMENT

Whatcom Law Group, Blaine, WA Sept. 2023-Present
Attorney

e General practice in the areas of civil litigation, real property, estate planning, and immigration law.

e Deputy Prosecutor of Blaine, WA, responsible for criminal prosecution at all stages to trial.

e Overseeing civil and criminal advocacy on behalf of Spanish speaking clients.
North County Public Defense, Bellingham, WA May 2023-Aug. 2023
Rule 9 Legal Intern

e Conduct interviews with clients regarding defense, appear in front of Belingham Municipal Court for

arraignments and pretrials on behalf of clients; negotiate with prosecutors on behalf of clients.

University of Idaho College of Law, Moscow, ID

Legal Intern - Immigration Clinic Aug. 2022-May 2023
e Draft and submit appellate brief to the Ninth Circuit. Conduct intakes for the clinic and translate
meetings.
Research Assistant Aug. 2021-May 2022

e Translated documents, conducted research regarding housing issues and country conditions.
Drafted refugee application and translated meetings.
Law Offices of Carol L. Edward & Associates, P.S., Mount Vernon, WA Jan. 2018-Aug. 2022
Paralegal and then Rule 9 Legal Intern

A. Cabrales, Page 1 of 2



e Drafted pleadings for EOIR, prepare appeals to USCIS. Drafted appellate briefs and prepare
appeals to the Ninth Circuit.

e Prepare packets for attorney review on U visa cases. Translated legal documents, drafted
declarations, translated attorney client meetings.

e Prepare packets for attorney review on asylum cases, adjustment cases, green card renewals,
citizenship applications, work permit applications, petitions for nonimmigrant workers, VAWA,
petitions to remove conditions on residence, U visas, and removals of cancellation.

e Drafted pleadings for EQIR, prepare appeals to USCIS, |1-290Bs, and appeals to the BIA. Drafted
appellate briefs, translated legal documents, drafted declarations, country condition research,
translated attorney client meetings.

Washington State Office of the Attorney General, Seattle, WA May 2021-Aug. 2021
Law Clerk

e Researched and prepared memorandums for attorney review. Assisted in preparing withess

interviews and motions. Attended meetings to discuss cases, participated in witness questioning.

BAR MEMBERSHIP/ ADMISSIONS
e Federal Court - Western District of Washington, 2024- present
¢ Washington State Bar Association, 2023- present
¢ Whatcom County Bar Association, 2023-Present

A. Cabrales, Page 2 of 2



5/22/25, 9:28 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025

View results

Respondent

14 Anonymous 6229

Time to complete

Eligibility Requirements

Award recipients must meet the “"young lawyer” definition in the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) Bylaws. Under the Bylaws, an active
member is considered a young lawyer if at least one of two criteria is met: 1) the member has been admitted to practice for fewer than five years (in
any state), or 2) the member is under 36 years of age.

Nomination Process

Candidates for the award must be nominated by another individual. To complete a nomination, complete the application below and email any sup-
plemental materials, e.g. nominee’s resume, articles, etc., that the nominee would like the WYLC to consider to newmembers@wsba.org. Please
note the nomination deadline is May 29.

Selection Process

During the selection process, the WYLC will consider the nominee's leadership in their community and involvement in public service activities as de-
scribed in RPC 6.1. Long-term service or an extraordinary contribution to the community will be considered, including:

a) leadership and service in the local community or within a bar association;

b)  WSBA, ABA, or local bar association activities;

¢)  Volunteering with pro bono or public service programs; or

d)  Writing a blog post for NWSidebar and/or writing an article for WSBA magazine.

The WYLC will select the award recipients at the June 2, 2025 WYLC meeting. All application materials will be included in the WYLC meeting materi-
als packet and posted online. Confidential information will be redacted from publication. Recipients may only receive the award once during the

WSBA fiscal year (October 1 —September 30). A congratulatory email will be sent directly from WSBA to the award recipient notifying them of their
selection. For more information, contact newmembers@wsba.org.

1. Nominee Name: *

2. Firm/Employer: *

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...  1/3



5/22/25, 9:28 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025
3. Mailing Address: *

10.

11.

. Phone Number: *

. E-Mail Address: *

. WSBA Number: *

. Year Admitted to Practice in Washington:

. Nominator's Name: *

. Nominator's Email: *

Relationship to Nominee: *

Supervisor

Describe the nominee's leadership in his or her local community: *

-hough ayoung and new lawyer has made an incredible impact in our legal community, from helping to catalyze the immigration lawyers in town to
begin meeting for monthly lunches to her commitment to the bolstering the local county bar association and our chapter of the Washington Women's Lawyer
organizationA-has also assisted the WSBA in filming a launch video for the statewide rollout of Deskbooks for everyone. Most importantly however, -has
been a tireless volunteer attorney in our civil legal aid clinics, and assumed a leadership role in organizing them by being elected as a Board member for LAW
Advocates. And our community has recognized -eadership with trust - when our seasoned attorney who chaired LAW Advocates passed away unexpectedly in
April of this year, -stood up to take the helm of the organization so that its efforts would not falter and was elected as Chair of the organization. This is DESPITE
and in the face of the fact that [Jl§s a young lawyer trying to build a practice in a faltering economy on a border town that depends on trade with Canada.
Without being overwhelmed with concern for-)wn material needs [llls giving-time to lead our entire legal community. -has many billable hours .is
responsible for, but that did not stop [llfrom leaving bedrest the week of a surgery to rally for the WSBA's Law Day on our courthouse steps. Bl - lcaderand a
servant of the public.

12. How has the nominee promoted and/or contributed tot he legal profession and community? *

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqgBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...

Not forgoing the above descriptions, which are also applicable- | have never met a young attorney, especially in this era of virtual connections, that spends so
much effort in giving lawyers a good name by serving the public and our professions. Above and beyond what | described above, -has also made time to serve
on the Judicial Review Committee of the Latino/a Bar Association of Washington, volunteer at legal clinics not only with LAW Advocates but those sponsored by
Western Washington University, and give pro bono consultations to families who do not speak English in our community. There are less than a handful of attorneys
who speak Spanish in our community, almost none natively, and only-who works in a rural general practice fﬁarrival and commitment to serving the
indigent has brought answers and hope to many who had no other resource to understand the issues they face. Even as a law student and limited license lawyer,
‘tepped forward as President of [lllchool's Latino/a Caucus and brought them together with the Northwest Justice Project to bring civil legal aid to
immigrant farm workers in Othello, WA.-brings lawyers together, and helps them serve the community.

213



5/22/25, 9:28 AM WYLC Public Service and Leadership Award - 2025

13. Describe a situation in which the nominee has "gone above and beyond"? *

As described above, despite having all of the pressures of being a young -attorney of color in a new town and newjob,-is fearless in asking -employer
to support- and in sacrificing -own material wealth to serve the indigent - it is not a small feat to Chair LAW Advocates or to have earned the trust of our
local bar to elect [llto do so; it is a position traditionally held by veteran attorneys. This consumes time and energy that takes -away from -job and -
family, but IlMoes it with resolve and positivity. This is like ] and that is also reflected in JJfjhistory, despite being Managing Editor of [JlLaw Review, Illelso
represented indigent asylum seekers and argued their case in front of the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals before -graduated law school. Our primary duty as
officers of the court, and in the continued service of our country, should be ensuring access to impartial justice for all people. Through Illactions and the issues
that she advocates for_has demonstrated a commitment to these ideals, which | believe is a threshold for anyone you consider for this award.

14. Additional information:

-haracter and attitude are also exemplary. In addition to a naturally pleasant and professional demeanor,-has also established a reputation as a civically
engaged and responsible lawyer, earning the respect of opposing counsel as well .:Iients and judges. They all know.works hard, comes prepared, and
respects the system we uphold. [lelso goes out of Jway to support the lawyers, paralegals, and interns that grace [lllfirm. For these reasons, as well the other
forementioned paragraphs, | can unreservedly endorse and nominate f being an ideal candidate for the Public Service & Leadership Award.

Additional Materials:

Please submit additional materials such as cover letter, resume, etc. to newmembers@wsba.org.

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?prevorigin=shell&origin=NeoPortalPage&subpage=design&id=whz_cOqgBgUafyQec5BnjAnBn1GE...

3/3












	0 - WYLC Meeting Agenda_20250718
	Washington Young Lawyers Committee
	Via Zoom | Meeting ID: 899 4611 1517| Passcode 608920| Call In 888-788-0099


	0a - WYLC Meeting Minutes_06.02.25_Draft
	Washington Young Lawyers Committee

	4a -1_Redacted
	4b - 2_Redacted
	4c - 3_Redacted
	4d - 4_Redacted
	4e - 5_Redacted
	4f - 6_Redacted
	4g - 7_Redacted
	4h - 8_Redacted
	4i - 9_Redacted
	4j - 10_Redacted
	4k - 11 - LinkedIn Resume - Redacted
	4kk - 11_Redacted
	4l - 12_Redacted
	4m - 13_Redacted
	4n - 14 - Resume -Redacted
	4nn - 14_Redacted
	4o- 15_Redacted



